
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, September 1, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

Zoom Meeting Information on Page 2 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on topics not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Approve Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  July 28th  
c. Oregon Department of Human Services Intergovernmental Grant Agreement 

#169202 for the Financing of Community Developmental Disabilities Program 
Services 

d. Fifth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 
#166052 for the Financing of Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery & 
Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services 

e. Letter of Intent – Request for Grant Proposals to Oregon Health Authority for 
Planning Work to Support Elimination of Behavioral Health Inequities 

5. Business Items 
a. Presentation on CAREs Rental Assistance Funds (CAPECO Representative) 
b. Equity Fund Loan Request (Christina Smith, Greater Eastern Oregon 

Development Corporation) 
c. Summary of CAREs Funds Expenditures (Kate Knop, Finance Director) 
d. Award Request for Proposals for Contractor to Operate The Landing Kitchen at 

the OHV Park (Greg Close, Parks General Manager 
e. Collective Bargaining Agreements – AFSCME General Employees & AFSCME 

Road Employees (Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources Director) 
f. Comment Letter to the Oregon Department of Energy Regarding the Request for 

Amendment 1 to the Boardman Solar Energy Facility (Tamra Mabbott, Planning 
Director)    

g. Emergency Operations Center Update 
h. Building Project Updates 

6. Department Reports 
a. Administrator’s Monthly Report (Darrell Green) 
b. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Melissa Ross) 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports 
9. Signing of documents 
10. Adjournment 
 

Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about  
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, County Administrator at (541) 676-
2529. 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  PASSWORD:  97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only Using Meeting ID 541-676-2546#: 

• 1-346-248-7799 
• 1-669-900-6833  
• 1-312-626-6799 

• 1-929-436-2866 
• 1-253-215-8782 
• 1-301-715-8592 

 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546


 

Board Minutes, July 28, 2021                                                                                                                                 Page 1 of 3 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
July 28, 2021 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair Don Russell, Commissioner Jim Doherty, Commissioner Melissa Lindsay, Darrell J. 
Green, Paul Gray, Lindsay Grogan, Katie Imes, Roberta Lutcher, Justin Nelson, Dave Pranger 
Present Via Zoom 
Staff:  Lindsay Grogan, Ian Murray, Christy Kenny, Kate Knop, Tamra Mabbott, Linda 
Skendzel, Heidi Turrell, Vickie Turrell; Non-Staff:  JoAnna Lamb, Glenn McIntire, Karen 
Pettigrew, David Sykes 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call:  9:01 a.m. 
City & Citizen Comments:  None 
Open Agenda:  No items 
 
Consent Calendar  
Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
2. Minutes:  June 30th 
3. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) #14713 with the Oregon State Lottery Commission 

to Participate in the Take Your Shot, Oregon! Drawing 
Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Business Items 
IGA with the State of Oregon – Oregon Alert 
Paul Gray, Emergency Manager 
Mr. Gray explained the State has gone to a new alert system, Oregon Alert, which is similar to 
what Morrow County currently uses, AlertSense.  However, Oregon Alert will be paid 100% by 
the State.  Mr. Gray said email notifications will go out to ask people to sign-up for the new 
system.  At that point, he said, they can choose what kind of notifications they wish to receive. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of 
Oregon to use the new notification system at no cost to local governments and authorize the 
Administrator or Chair to sign on behalf of the County.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  
Unanimous approval. 
 
Dividend Allocation – SAIF Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources Manager 
Ms. Grogan reviewed the SAIF dividends paid to the County each year since 2016.  This year’s 
amount, $62,755, was larger than previous years and she suggested increasing the amount 
allocated to the Safety Committee for fiscal year 2021-22.   
 
Commissioner Doherty proposed not allocating it until after today’s Executive Session related to 
labor negotiations.  He said it was those folks out there who brought the money back by not 
having time loss.  



 

Board Minutes, July 28, 2021                                                                                                                                 Page 2 of 3 
 

Commissioner Doherty moved to table it at this time.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  
Unanimous approval. 
 
Request to Purchase Bus Sanitizing Equipment 
Katie Imes, Coordinator, The Loop 
Ms. Imes said a Request for Quotes was released for sanitizing equipment with three quotes 
received.  She outlined the reasons for recommending the AeroClave Portable Decontamination 
System from Creative Bus Sales for each of the three bus storage locations in the County.  
During the discussion, Ms. Imes said the source of funding was CAREs dollars and the portable 
units could be used by other departments, as well.   
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve the purchase of the sanitizing equipment from Creative 
Bus Sales, in the amount of $61,299.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Discussion:  
Commissioner Lindsay said she wanted a breakdown of all CAREs dollars and where they’ve 
gone so the Board knows what’s left, adding this body needs to be more in-tune to those 
expenditures.  Ms. Imes said she tracks all of that each month in her department and could 
include that information in her quarterly reports to the Board.  Commissioner Lindsay said the 
Public Health Department does too but it’s just not coming to the Board.  She continued, all the 
departments need to get with Finance so it can be compiled.  She said she’s asked in the past but 
hasn’t seen it yet.  Chair Russell said it would come forward as an agenda item in the near 
future.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Order No. OR-2021-11:  Adopting a Fee Schedule 
Darrell Green, Administrator 
Mr. Green presented the semi-annual update to the Fee Schedule, referenced the pages in the 
Agenda Packet that spelled out the changes, and said the next scheduled update would take place 
January 2022.  Various discussions.   
 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the update to the Morrow County Fee Schedule, 
effective July 28, 2021 and the accompanying Order No. OR-2021-11:  In the Matter of Adopting 
a Fee Schedule for Morrow County.  Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Building Project Updates 
Sheriff Station 2 Building:  Basically completed except a few lights and doors.  Once completed, 
gravel will be added around the exterior. 
Courthouse Feasibility Study, Request for Proposals:  About six architect/engineering firms 
attended an informational meeting last Friday, either in-person or virtually.  The deadline to 
submit a proposal is August 5th. 
Morrow County Government Center Building:  Street lights will be approved soon; the original 
choice for some of the flooring has been delayed so a very close substitution was made; drywall 
going up.  Photos of the progress were shared by Mr. Green. 
 
Department Reports 

• The written Road Department Monthly Report was reviewed, as submitted by Eric Imes, 
Assistant Road Master 

• The Human Resources Quarterly Report was reviewed by Lindsay Grogan, Director 



 

Board Minutes, July 28, 2021                                                                                                                                 Page 3 of 3 
 

• The Public Health Department Quarterly Report was reviewed by Nazario Rivera, 
Director 

• The Weed Department Quarterly Report was reviewed by Dave Pranger, Weed 
Coordinator/Inspector 

 
Correspondence 

• Letter from the Town of Lexington thanking the County for the Grants to Cities funds 
and outlining how they were spent in previous years 

• Email update on the status of the Easterday Farms Confined Animal Feeding Operations 
(CAFO) permit from William Matthews, Oregon Department of Agriculture, Program 
Manager, CAFO and Fertilizer Programs 

 
Commissioner Reports 
Reports were provided by the Commissioners. 
 
Chair Russell said the Board would take a short break before going into Executive Session.  He 
read the appropriate Executive Session citation and said the Board could come out of Executive 
Session in approximately 30-40 minutes to make a decision on the SAIF Dividend. 
 
Break:  10:42-10:51 a.m. 
 
10:52 a.m. Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) – To conduct deliberations with 
persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations 
 
11:28 a.m. Closed Executive Session 
 
11:30 a.m.  Chair Russell reopened the regular portion of the meeting and said the consensus 
was the Board needed more clarifying information and will come back next week to take up the 
motion that was tabled to hear additional information to make an informed decision.   
 
Signing of documents 
 
Adjourned:  11:40 a.m. 
 
 

 
  































































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of 2) 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred).  Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting.  Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.   

   Item # 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Date submitted to reviewers: 
Requested Agenda Date: 

Presenter at BOC:

Department: 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
 Order or Resolution 
 Ordinance/Public Hearing: 
 1st Reading  2nd Reading 
 Public Comment Anticipated: 
Estimated Time:  

 Document Recording Required 
 Contract/Agreement 

Appointments 
Update on Project/Committee 
Consent Agenda Eligible
Discussion & Action 
Estimated Time: 

   Purchase Pre-Authorization
Other

  N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements

Contractor/Entity: 
Contractor/Entity Address:  
Effective Dates – From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount:  Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000?  Yes   No 

Reviewed By: 
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 

DATE 

Administrator  Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office 
DATE 

Human Resources 

*Required for all legal documents

*Required for all contracts; other
items as appropriate.
*If appropriate

DATE *Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously).  When each office has notified the submitting 
department of approval, then submit the request to the BOC for placement on the agenda.

 

(For BOC Use)

(No acronyms please)

Rev: 8-26-21



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

Rev: 8-26-21 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

☐  * Attach additional background documentation as needed.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):



 DRAFT  

• A description of your planning need, how you would implement your project, and how  
you would spend your proposed budget.    
  
Morrow County and neighboring Umatilla County share a community mental health provider, 
Community Counseling Solutions, or CCS.  CCS is currently short-staffed and would like to 
address the need to assess behavioral health inequities by bringing on a contracted Project 
Manager.  The project manager would bring together community partners and those with lived 
experience of behavioral health needs, particularly those disproportionately impacted by health 
inequity, for a series of meetings with the goal of creating an inventory of all resources available 
and finding the gaps and inequities therein. The project manager would work with the group to 
create a working document that members agree upon which outlines smart goals, and coordinate 
members to efficiently utilize community partners’ time and keep momentum going.  The project 
manager would also report milestones and progress toward goals to the group through regularly 
scheduled meetings.  The budget would cover the Project Manager’s time.   
  
 
• A description of your organizational partnerships and your ability to collaborate with  
community members.  
  
Morrow County has a robust Local Public Safety Coordinating Council (LPSCC) which meets 
monthly to assess all issues related to public safety and develop plans to address and improve 
efficiencies. Community partners also regularly participate in the “community resource 
roundtable” which is developing a database of all resources in the region.   It’s important to note 
that due to the rural nature of Morrow County, collaboration takes place daily on a more 
informal basis as well.  The Covid epidemic has slowed the abilities of everyone to collaborate 
on a personal level but has not slowed the Morrow County LPSCC in leading the way to many 
projects kicking off.  These projects in planning and or rollout include a Youth diversion 
committee to assist youth in meeting goals to stay out of the Youth system as well as a Justice 
Court level behavioral health court.  The LPSCC, with the work of a coordinator, has proven to  
be a functioning convener/facilitator to accomplishing goals for Morrow County. 
  
• A description of how you will ensure that planning work is led by people with lived  
experience of behavioral health needs and people disproportionately impacted by health  
inequity.  
  
CCS has several layers of advisory boards and members who represent community members with lived 
experiences.  We also have a strong peer network including those with past experience with BH and 
A&D recovery. These tools will allow CCS to include the requisite individuals in project.   
  
• A description of how your project would help eliminate health inequities and assure  
access to services for communities of color, tribal communities, immigrant communities  
(including people who are undocumented), LGBTQIA+ communities, and people living  
in underserved communities throughout the state.  
  
The data is being gathered by CCS, as far as behavioral health inequities that currently exist.  This also 
ties into the description of the need (first bullet). While we could focus on the last part, “people living in 



 DRAFT  

underserved communities throughout the state,”   The fact that there is limited inpatient facility access 
from Idaho to Portland seems to show that if there is minimal residential treatment available most of 
the time. If the overall goal is to “Identify the current gaps in housing and facility-based residential 
services for people with behavioral health needs” will be key to this data from CCS as well as 
lack of facilities being the biggest hurdle.   
  
  
• The proposed budget is $50,000.  
 








































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes - 7-28-21
	DHS IGA #169202, Community Developmental Disabilities Program Services
	Am. 5 to OHA IGA #166052, Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, etc.
	Letter of Intent, Request for Grant Proposals to OHA for Planning Work
	Equity Fund Loan Request
	CAREs Funds Expenditures Summary
	Award RFP - OHV Landing Kitchen
	Ratification of CBAs
	AFSCME General Employees CBA
	AFSCME Road Employees CBA
	Comment Letter to ODOE, Boardman Solar Facility, RFA1
	Administrator's Monthly Report
	Sheriff's Office Monthly Report

	Item: 
	Staff Contact Name: 
	Phone Number Ext: 
	Department Name: 
	Agenda Date: 9/1/21
	Short Title: Letter of Intent – Request for Grant Proposals to Oregon Health Authority for
Planning Work to Support Elimination of Behavioral Health Inequities
	Order or Resolution: Off
	OrdinancePublic Hearing: Off
	1st Reading: Off
	2nd Reading: Off
	Public Comment Anticipated: Off
	Est Time: 
	Document Recording Required: Off
	ContractAgreement: Off
	Appointments: Off
	Update on ProjectCommittee: Off
	Discussion Only: On
	Discussion  Action: Off
	Est Time 2: 
	Department Report: Off
	Other: Off
	Item Other: 
	NA: On
	Contractor: 
	Contractor Address: 
	Effective From: 
	Effect Through: 
	Total Contract Amount: 
	Budget Line: 
	If Yes Attach Purchase PreAuthorization Request if Applicable: Yes
	Reviewed By: 
	DATE:                                
	DATE_2: 
	DATE_3: 
	DATE_4: 
	Issues, Background:           At last week's LPSCC meeting, this grant proposal was shared by CCS to the group.  Discussion was had with the LPSCC members and support was shown in favor of submitting a letter of intent to apply for the grant proposal.  Our current LPSCC coordinator, Jessica Rose agreed to work on this grant and get it submitted by the due date of September 3, 2021.  If Morrow County is selected to receive this grant, some of these funds may be used to help support the LPSCC coordinator position as well as planning work to support elimination of behavioral health inequities.  
          Parties who apply for this grant, must submit a Letter of Intent to access this funding.  The letter must be submitted on agency letterhead and signed by the individual in your organization who has the authority to commit to the proposed planning activities.  The letter must include:
--List of other organizations "co-sponsoring" or supporting this letter.
--A description of your planning need, how you would implement your project, and how you would spend your                                                                                     proposed budget.   
--A description of your organizational partnerships and your ability to collaborate with community members.
--A description of how you will ensure that planning work is led by people with lived experience of behavioral                    health needs and people disproportionately impacted by health inequity.
--A description of how your project would help eliminate health inequities and assure access to services for communities of color, tribal communities, immigrant communities (including people who are undocumented), LGBTQIA+ communities, and people living in undeserved communities throughout the state.
         A list of the departments that have supported this letter include: Justice Court, Oregon Youth Authority, Circuit Court, Domestic Violence Services, Boardman PD, Health Department, Juvenile Department, City Manager of Irrigon, Department of Human Services, Sheriff's Office, John Bowles, City of Boardman, City of Heppner-Karen Pettigrew, Veterans Services, and Parole and Probation.
          Jessica Rose is currently working on finalizing the above listed items that need to be included in the letter and will have it completed on or before September 3, 2021.
	Fiscal Impact: This would be a grant to the County in the amount of up to $50,000 and assist in retaining the LPSCC coordinator under contract as a well as begin planning and research work toward what type of BH capacity is needed under the assistance of OHA and CCS.
	MOTION: Motion to approve letter of intent, with specific equity data inserted, with one of the options listed: 
1) Commissioner Lindsay sign as LPSCC representative and due to quick turn around time 
2) Chair Russell sign



